
U JliuKl Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
ELEVENTH SESSION 
Official Record. 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 28: 

Page 

Establishment of a world food reserve: report of the 
Economic and Social Council (continued) ........ .... 167 

Chairman: Mr. Mohammad MIR KHAN (Pakistan). 

AGENDA ITEM 28 

Establishment of a world food reserve: report of 
the Economic and Social Council (A/3154, 
A/3192, AjC.2jL.297 and Corr.l, AjC.2jL.299) 
(continued) 

1. Mr. BENN (Australia) said that the report en­
titled Functions of a World Food Reserve-Scope and 
Limitations1 was a well-reasoned and conservative 
study of the entire question of the establishment of a 
world food reserve. The Food and Agriculture Organi­
zation of the United Nations (FAO) had rightly 
stressed the practical difficulties to be overcome and 
the limitations of the role of such a reserve. 
2. The Australian delegation recognized that it was 
desirable to establish food reserves by means of sur­
pluses, not only for humanitarian reasons but also as 
a contribution to the economic development of under­
developed areas. However, the Australian Government 
could not approve, even in principle, any of the pro­
posals of a multilateral nature which had been made. It 
would be unable to approve the proposals so long as the 
manner of carrying them into effect had not been 
worked out in detail. That also explained why the 
Australian Government had favoured an ad hoc ap­
proach on a bilateral basis, without any prior commit­
ment on the part of Governments. Not that Australia 
was indifferent to the difficulties which food shortages 
could cause in certain countries; on the contrary, the 
Australian Government had assisted several countries­
India, Pakistan and Ceylon-in emergency situations by 
providing them with supplies from its own resources, 
and it was willing to continue to give assistance of that 
kind whenever necessary. Nevertheless, the establish­
ment and operation of national and international food 
reserves should not become the subject of a final de­
cision until the practical aspects of the question, and not 
merely general purposes and principles, had been 
studied much more thoroughly. Such a study should 
preferably be prepared by FAO, as the agency best 
qualified. He was in complete agreement with the opin­
ion expressed by the representative of Ceylon, who had 
said that the whole question should be viewed as one 
aspect of the broader problem of economic development. 

1 Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, 
Commodity Policy Studies No. 10, Rome, 1956. 

167 

SECOND COMMI'I'IU, 418th 
MEETING 

Wednesday, 16 January 1957, 
at 11 a.m. 

New Yorlc 

3. With respect to the establishment of buffer stocks 
for market stabilization, in any scheme for creating 
self-financing buffer stocks the interests of producers 
as well as of consumers should be considered, since 
both obviously had an equal interest in market stability. 
Such schemes, however, generally had a tendency to re­
duce upward price fluctuation and were of little or no 
value as a check on downward price fluctuation. 

4. The holding of buffer stocks, though desirable in 
principle, presented difficulties in implementation. The 
prices of imported foods were so vital a factor for so 
many countries that Governments would probably be 
reluctant to concede to some international body the right 
to make decisions concerning the management of such 
stocks, particularly in view of the rudimentary stage of 
knowledge of buffer-stock operations. Still, some prog­
ress might be made if it were possible to define, and 
then distinguish between, excessive and reasonable fluc­
tuations, short-term movements and long-term trends, 
transitory surface disturbances and more profound 
changes. Even so, there would still be difficulties : buf­
fer stock11 might serve to absorb surpluses caused by 
domestic price policies, in which case measures to dis­
courage over-production would be postponed and the 
problem of over-supply would be magnified. Moreover, 
there were limits to the cushioning effects of buffer 
stocks : once they attainea their maximum capacity they 
could do nothing to stem the flow of commodities and 
were of negligible value as a bolster against falling 
prices. 

5. The use of surplus agricultural commodities for the 
economic development of under-developed countries 
might sometimes have undesirable effects both on the 
economies of the recipient countries and on the trade 
of the normal commercial suppliers of such countries 
because, unless strictly controlled, it would disrupt their 
normal marketing arrangements. To eliminate that dan­
ger, the projects in each case would have to be sub­
jected to thorough study, the conditions found neces­
sary by such a study would have to be strictly ob­
served, and care would have to be taken to avoid any 
tendency towards the universal application of plans de­
vised to suit a particular set of circumstances. As the 
F AO report stated, the difficulties in the way of world­
wide co-ordinated endeavours might not be insuperable, 
but they were very great and very real and should be 
approached with considerable caution. 

6. The United States draft resolution (A/C.2/L297 
and Corr.l) represented a constructive effort in an im­
portant field. It was nevertheless surprising that the 
proposal, which dealt with the establishment of na­
tional reserves, had been submitted in connexion with 
agenda item 28, which concerned the establishment of a 
world food reserve. Indeed, the Australian delegation 
was unable to accept without qualification the United 
States representative's view that the establishment of 
national reserves would accomplish most of the objec-

AjC.2jSR.418 



168 General Assembly-Eleventh session-Seeond Committee 

tives envisaged by the establishment of a world food 
reserve. 
7. On the other hand, he noted with satisfaction that 
the United States proposal represented a practical ap­
proach; in particular, it contemplated bilateral arrange­
ments rather than the establishment of an international 
organization to administer reserve stocks. 
8. It was of course desirable to establish national 
food reserves for the purpose of relieving emergencies, 
but before any international action was taken in that 
direction the conditions governing the establishment 
and operation of such reserves would have to be de­
fined, to ensure that international trade and commerce 
were not disrupted. Those problems were being consid­
ered by FAO, and he agreed with the representative of 
Argentina that FAO was the body competent to do so. 
Until FAO announced the results of its studies, the 
General Assembly should approach the question of na­
tional food reserves with considerable caution. It might 
even be premature for the Assembly to adopt any reso­
lution on that subject. 
9. He was pleased to learn that the United States had 
decided not to use its surplus agricultural stocks for the 
establishment of national reserves unless two conditions 
of fundamental importance were satisfied: firstly, that 
the countries concerned developed reasonable pro­
grammes, in keeping with their particular circumstances 
and, secondly, that they proceeded with due regard to 
the FAO principles of avoiding harmful interferences 
with a normal pattern of production and international 
trade. 
10. Mr. BRAVO (Chile) referred to some of the 
principles set forth in the Preamble of the Charter of 
the United Nations and to the provisions of Articles 
13 and 55; he said that the United Nations had become 
so absorbed in the recent political events that it had 
neglected to pay proper attention to the purposes de­
fined in those Articles. He asked the members of the 
Committee to search their consciences and decide 
whether they had really accomplished their task. 
11. If a balance-sheet were drawn up for the work 
accomplished during the past ten years, it was impos­
sible not to reach the conclusion which the Secretary­
General had expressed in the introduction to his annual 
report ( A/3137/ Add.l) after analysing current eco­
nomic trends: namely, that the most important eco­
nomic and social problems confronting the world were 
almost as far from solution as they had been ten years 
earlier. 
12. What were the circumstances or influences ac­
counting for the failure of the United Nations in the 
economic field? Certainly not the structure of the Or­
ganization, nor any lack of ability and zeal on the part 
of the staff, which was above reproach. Perhaps the 
fault lay with certain Powers which, despite the re­
sources at their disposal, were doing nothing to assist 
the economically weaker countries. 
13. Of the five items on the Committee's agenda, two 
items 26 and 29 could have been disposed of in two 
weeks, for they called for purely formal decisions. Yet 
less than a month was left for dealing with the other 
three items, the two most important of which con­
cerned the economic development of under-developed 
countries, a subject which the United Nations had 
been studying for more than eight years. The attitude 
of the great Powers in that connexion was most dis­
appointing. 

14. With respect to the Special United Nations Fund 
for Economic Development ( S UNFED), it was pro­
posed to convene a world economic conference. That 
proposal was unnecessary, for the Committee itself, be­
ing composed of the representatives of eighty sovereign 
States, was perfectly competent to consider and solve 
problems of an economic and financial nature. 
15. He traced the history of the question of a world food 
reserve from the establishment of the United Nations 
Relief and Rehabilitation Administration ( UNRRA) ~ 
in 1943 to the adoption of General Assembly reso­
lution 827 (IX), the provisions of which he cited. 
All that effort had finally culminated in the draft reso­
lution contained in document AjC.2jL.297 and Corr.l. 
The latter marked a step backward inasmuch as it con­
templated the constitution of national reserves and ig­
nored the proposal for the establishment of a world 
organization, except in so far as it called for fresh re­
search and studies. 
16. In the month of work still left, the Committee 
should draft and adopt a resolution which would guar­
antee the implementation of the only two projects re­
lating to economic questions that were really construc­
tive and interdependent; such action would hold out 
the prospect of a practical solution for the problem of 
raising the standards of living in the under-developed 
countries. 

17. Mr. LOUGH (New Zealand) said that his coun­
try, as a large producer and exporter of foodstuffs, was 
intensely interested in international food problems; his. 
delegation had therefore made a very close study of 
FAO's outstanding report, which gave an objective ac­
count of what had been and what was being done to 
meet food shortages. He fully agreed with the general 
conclusion that a distinction should be drawn between 
the use of food supplies to fight malnutrition and the 
establishment of a world food reserve designed to sta­
bilize prices on the international market. He also shared 
the view expressed in operative paragraph 2 of Eco­
nomic and Social Council resolution 621 (XXII) that 
the basic solution of the problems to which the General 
Assembly resolution referred lay in rapid and balanced 
economic development. 
18. There were, however, some aspects of the FAO 
report with which his delegation did not altogether 
agree. While the report pointed out that the current 
problems were due to the occurrence not of seasonal 
gluts but of excess supplies generated under national 
price support programmes, F AO seemed inclined to 
think that such policies were inevitable and that the 
accumulation of stocks would continue. New Zealand 
could not accept that state of affairs with equanimity, 
for countries which exported their primary products 
under normal commercial conditions could not hope to 
compete with highly industrialized countries in which 
exports were subsidized by the State. Furthermore, the 
very existence of such surpluses made the external 
trading position of all the exporting countries uncer­
tain and insecure. 

19. Such a situation was certainly not conducive to a 
healthy world commodity trade, even though the major 
country concerned-the United States-fully recog­
nized, as its representative had stated, an obligation to 
avoid actions which would have disruptive effects on 
the level of prices. While appreciating the efforts which 
the United States Government was making to avoid 
upsetting commercial markets, the New Zealand dele­
gation thought it desirable that policies which gave 



418th meeting-16 January 1957 169 

rise to surpluses should be adjusted so as to alleviate 
the harmful effects of the accumulation of stocks on 
international trade. It was therefore unable to accept 
the conclusion implied in the FAO report that a con­
tinuation of the existing state of affairs was inevitable. 
20. Nor did the New Zealand delegation fully share 
the FAO view that greater weight should be placed on 
building up national food reserves than on creating in­
ternational reserves. He agreed that national reserves 
set aside from normal production or imports might play 
a very useful part in the event of emergency shortages, 
and that in general they would not be so large as to 
threaten the stability of world prices. However, as the 
national reserves in question would be built up largely 
with the help of the United States, it was not improb­
able that they would reach substantial proportions. 
Provided that the reserves were used only in emer­
gencies, the countries exporting primary products would 
have no cause for alarm. In the absence of international 
supervision or control, a State possessing such stocks 
could use them as it pleased, without any obligation to 
consult other Governments. However, more than one 
situation could be envisaged in which the State con­
cerned might be tempted to use its stocks in a way 
which would tend to exaggerate the instability of al­
ready unstable commodity markets. In the event of a 
general decline in commodity prices, for example, a 
country dependent on commodity exports and faced 
with the necessity of restricting its imports to offset 
the decline in its currency earnings would naturally 
be tempted to draw on its food reserves, and might 
reasonably argue that an exceptional measure of that 
kind was fully justified by the critical position of its 
balance of payments. The inevitable effect would be to 
create new difficulties for the food exporting countries 
which would be compelled, in turn, to cut down their 
imports. The world economy was so interdependent 
that the dangers of such a situation were all too clear. 
21. Various international schemes aimed at prevent­
ing a general decline in prices had been suggested, but 
they were all based to a greater or lesser degree on 
buying in to build up stocks when prices were falling. 
The point was, however, that Governments would pro­
tect their national interests by drawing on their re­
serves instead of importing, and the effect would only 
be to intensify the downward movement of prices. 
When national reserves had been exhausted, purchases 
would be resumed and a new upward movement would 
begin. It would seem, therefore, that the establishment 
of national reserves operated without any international 
control would tend to increase the existing instability 
of the commodity market. 
22. National reserves could of course help to check 
the upward movement at a time of rising prices by 
slowing down purchases, and thus act as a stabilizing 
factor. What the primary producing countries were 
most interested in, however, was some type of reserve 
that would check the downward movement in the prices 
of their products. For that purpose it would be neces­
sary to build up reserves from normal commercial sup­
plies when prices were falling; but if reserves were to 
be established from United States surpluses they would 
not have that effect. 
23. The New Zealand delegation therefore considered 
that the establishment of national reserves from sur­
pluses, and their use, should be subject to international 
control. It had been pleased that the FAO Consultative 
Sub-Committee on Surplus Disposal was giving close 
consideration to the international aspects of the prob-

lem and that the Committee on Commodity Problems, 
in March 1957, and no doubt the FAO Council later, 
would be discussing it also. 
24. Turning to the United States draft resolution he 
expressed full support for the amendment proposed by 
Denmark (A/C.2/L.299) but had doubts about the 
draft resolution itself. It was surely the function of 
FAO, and not of the Secretary-General, to prepare the 
proposed report, since the former was the body tech­
nically best qualified, and in any case it already had 
the question under consideration. He echoed the cau­
tion voiced by the representatives of the Philippines 
and Argentina against the overlapping and duplication 
of work. It would not be possible for him, for the 
reasons stated, to vote for the United States draft reso­
lution unless it were amended to take due account of 
FAO's competence in the matter of food reserves. It 
was doubtful whether a General Assembly resolution 
was necessary, but if such a resolution were adopted 
he hoped it would stress the need for prior consulta­
tions with the exporting countries before bilateral 
agreements relating to the use of surpluses for the 
establishment of national reserves were concluded. 
25. Mr. KAUFMANN (Netherlands) was disturbed 
by the slow progress made in solving the problems in­
volved in the establishment of a world food reserve. 
26. The excellent F AO report clearly demonstrated 
the practical impossibility of solving through a single 
instrument the four distinct problems set forth in Gen­
eral Assembly resolution 827 (IX). The economic and 
other aspects of the measures designed to counteract 
price fluctuations and promote the disposal of surpluses, 
the technical problems of raising food production, the 
health aspects of fighting malnutrition, the humanitarian 
and organizational aspects of famine relief, all had 
their own special characteristics. One of the great merits 
of the FAO report was that it separated and analysed 
them. 
27. The coexistence of poverty and plenty, famine and 
food surpluses, was so patent that easy solutions might 
be expected to abound. Yet that was not so. 
28. Referring to the question of the use of food sur­
pluses, he endorsed the remarks of the representatives 
of Australia and New Zealand. The establishment of 
national reserves raised problems different from those 
involved in the establishment of a world reserve, and 
perhaps the question of national reserves should not 
be considered by the Committee. 
29. Furthermore, the use of food surpluses would not 
automatically produce salutary effects in the recipient 
countries. As shown in the FAO report, a number of 
conditions had to be fulfilled, one of them being that 
the foodstuffs consumed should be additional. The 
danger of inflation was ever present. If counterpart 
funds were set up from the sale of such foodstuffs, the 
spending of the funds in question might easily have in­
flationary effects. It was no coincidence that under the 
Marshall Plan several European Governments had 
come to the conclusion that the best use of the so-called 
counterpart funds was not to use them at all. 

30. While the possibilities of using food surpluses to 
establish national reserves should be explored and ex­
ploited to the full, the long-term answers to the prob­
lem lay elsewhere. In that connexion, he said it was 
hardly possible to distinguish between the buffer stocks 
referred to by the Australian representative and the 
national reserves referred to by the New Zealand rep­
resentative. Several delegations had stressed that the 



170 General Assembly-Eleventh session-Second Committee 

existence of food surpluses was related to insufficient 
demand, and that the demand would increase pro­
gressively with economic development. The Nether lands 
delegation agreed with the view expressed in paragraph 
2 of Economic and Social Council resolution 621 
(XXII) and was convinced that the fundamental solu­
tion of the twin problems of fund surpluses and short­
ages lay in balanced economic development and in a 
balanced international division of economic activities. 
Those were the postulates of any solution to the urgent 
question of mitigating inexcusable price fluctuations. 
31. The draft resolution proposed by the United 
States met with his approval in principle, though the 
points made by the Australian and New Zealand rep­
resentatives deserved careful study by the Committee. 
In draft resolution 621 (XXII), the Economic and 
Social Council had requested the Secretary-General to 
draw up a report in consultation with F AO. It was 
therefore logical that the Secretary-General should also 
act in consultation with F AO in dealing with the new 
subject raised in the United States draft resolution, 
especially since the question of the use of food sur­
pluses for constituting national reserves was now under 
close consideration by FAO, which had set up a spe­
cial working party for that purpose. 
32. The Netherlands delegation was therefore in com­
plete agreement with the Danish amendment which 
contained a reference to F AO principles, and looked 
forward with keen interest to hearing what the Direc­
tor-General of F AO would have to say on the question 
at an early meeting of the Second Committee. 
33. Mr. PALIWAL (India) said that for India, as 
for many countries which were in the process of de­
velopment, food and food reserves were matters of vital 
importance. In the view of the Indian delegation, the 
FAO report had been right in pointing out that the self­
financing of a world food reserve could be used mainly 
to counteract excessive short-term price fluctuations 
and not for fighting chronic malnutrition, relieving 
famine and other emergency situations, building up 
national reserves and promoting economic development. 
It was preferable to seek a solution for the latter type 
of problem through the disposal of structural surpluses 
either by way of bilateral agreements or through the 
medium of a world food capital fund as proposed by 
FAO. 
34. India did not object in principle to the establish­
ment of a world food reserve, but saw many practical 
difficulties in the way of its constitution and operation. 
In particular, difficulties relating to the determination 
of the desirable size of a buffer stock, in cash and in 
kind, and the establishment of floor and ceiling prices 
of different types of products, besides the operating 
difficulties, would have to be closely studied. Except in 
the case of tin before the war, there had been no ex­
perience of the working of international buffer stocks, 
and some of the remedies suggested by FAO were 
likely to run into practical difficulties in actual opera­
tion. All those problems were being studied by the 
FAO Committee on Commodity Problems and by the 
Consultative Sub-Committee on the Economic Aspects 
of Rice and it was hoped that solutions would be found 
sooner or later. 
35. In the prevailing circumstances, the Indian dele­
gation felt that the objective of counteracting excessive 
price fluctuations could be achieved mainly through 
publicly managed national stocks. It would not, how­
ever, be possible to carry large stocks unless external 
financial assistance was forthcoming to meet the capital 

charges and operating expenses involved. Besides, a 
complete co-ordination of national stock policies on an 
international plane with a view to relieving temporary 
shortages and absorbing temporary surpluses would be 
a very difficult task. The only way acceptable to all the 
countries for achieving that co-ordination would per­
haps be to have periodic discussions by inter-govern­
mental groups. Such an arrangement would operate by 
consent of the participating countries and not through 
any international control. 
36. The suggestion made by F AO concerning the 
establishment of a world food capital fund was com­
mendable in principle, and the proposal to link it up 
with SUNFED deserved consideration. As explained 
in the F AO report, the utilization of surplus food 
stocks to assist economic development could only work 
satisfactorily if other forms of finance could be made 
available to meet that part of expenditure which could 
not be covered by the use of surplus food. A link with 
SUNFED might enable the importing countries to have 
both surplus farm products and the additional grants 
required by them in order to operate the various pro­
jects in a co-ordinated manner. 
37. In the Indian delegation's view, it would be very 
desirable if the Secretary-General, in consultation with 
F AO and other agencies, would explore the possibility 
of setting up a working group to examine how far the 
various proposals made by F AO and the suggestions 
made at the twenty-second session of the Economic and 
Social Council could be given practical shape. The 
working group might, in particular, make a careful 
study of the ideas and conclusions flowing from the 
distinctions made in the F AO report between two types 
of fund, namely commodity stabilization fund reserves 
operating on a self-financing basis on the one hand, and 
the world food capital fund linked if possible with 
SUNFED on the other. 
38. The Indian delegation, before proposing any 
amendment, would be glad to hear any comment on its 
suggestions. It reserved the right to offer further com­
ments when the draft resolution and amendments, if 
any, carne up for discussion. 
39. In conclusion, he reaffirmed his Government's 
general agreement with resolution 621 (XXII) of the 
Economic and Social Council. 

40. Mr. JACQUINOT (France) said that the course 
which General Assembly resolution 827 (IX) had set 
for the Committee involved two dangers : in order to 
achieve its aims, the Committee must beware of failing 
in idealism and of avoiding any practical form of action. 

41. The establishment of a world food reserve raised 
complex issues which it was difficult to dissociate from 
the more general questions with which they were closely 
linked. Great credit was due to FAO for submitting 
such an excellent analysis of existing knowledge on the 
subject and for classifying its various aspects without 
artificially simplifying them. 
42. The Economic and Social Council had acknowl­
edged at its twenty-second session that a single organi­
zation could not achieve all the objectives which the 
General Assembly had set for the world food reserve, 
namely : to relieve emergency needs in case of famine, 
to fight chronic malnutrition, to promote the stabiliza­
tion of agricultural prices and to promote the rational 
disposal of surpluses. The Council had therefore laid 
particular stress on the utilization of food reserves to 
relieve unforeseeable food shortages and had requested 
the Secretary-General to prepare a report on the sub-



418th meeting-16 January 1957 171 

ject. The Council had thus placed emphasis on the as­
pect of the question which was entitled to priority on 
both humanitarian and practical grounds. 

43. As was well known, the international community 
had acted speedily a!Id eff~ctively whenever help had 
been l!eeded by famme-stncken peoples; but such in­
ternatiOnal generosity had seldom been co-ordinated · it 
had been the indirect total, or rather the juxtaposition 
of the generosity of individual countries. It was ob­
vious that a more coherent organization of assistance 
would result in the speedier and more complete relief 
of needs which were ever pressing. Food distribution 
schemes carried out by FAO and the United Nations 
Children's Fund had shown that joint action could be 
both spee~y and effecti':e. The Food and Agriculture 
Orgamzatwn of the Umted Nations had evolved and 
was applying, methods of detecting the threat of f~mine 
anywhere in the. world. The present task was to sup­
plement that action by means of an emergency relief 
system, also on an international basis. 

44. Several methods of organizing such relief had 
been proposed, ranging from an ambitious scheme for 
an international relief fund to more practical plans such 
as .the "Plan. of the Three Circles", the operation of 
which was bnefl.y set out in paragraphs 54 to 57 of the 
F AO report. The French Government favoured the 
latter system : its flexible procedure would obviate the 
difficulti~s of storage a?d transport and ensure speedy 
an~ straigh.tforward action on the basis of prior under­
taki.n~s which many Governments appeared to be in a 
position to assume. The United States draft resolution 
appeared to be along those lines. It was natural at that 
stage that text~ proposed should still be vague. The 
French delegatiOn hoped that the report which the 
Secr~tary-General had been requested to prepare would 
provide the Committee with information enabling it to 
take a decision. Meanwhile, however the French dele­
gation hoped to persuade other delegations that it was 
absolute!;: indisp~ns<~;ble, whatever the method adopted, 
to co-ordmate re!tef m order to achieve positive results. 
It was better to plan ahead than to improvise. 

45. Nevertheless, the relief that could be furnished in 
emergencies did not eradicate the deep-set causes. The 
P<?PUlation of ce~tain under-developed countries was 
sttil threatened with famine, and the free distribution 
of food did not r~~edy that situation ; the only remedy 
was to adopt decisive measures to ensure the economic 
developme!It of such countries. That was why it had 
been considered preferable to channel the limited re­
sources available for international assistance into eco­
nomic development, and to use agricultural surpluses to 
finance such development. Development programmes 
brought about an increased demand for food in the 
countries applying them, and so placed a strain on do­
mestic prices ; that strain could be reduced by deliveries 
of agricultural surpluses, which would thus contribute 
to economic development. In that connexion, F AO had 
suggested the establishment of a world food capital 
fund which would be distinct from SUNFED but the 
financing of which would be co-ordinated with that of 
SUNFED. The French delegation could not but reaard 
that suggestion as demonstrating the justice ol' the 
argument recently advanced by the Brazilian and 
French representatives concerning the need for some 
degree of financial centralization. 

4?. Lastly, the world food reserve was intended to pro­
vide buffer stocks. The FAO report made it clear that 
it was stili too early to discuss the setting up of what 

the French delegation had called in a previous state­
me!lt ~ "comptoir". The important thing, however, was 
to mdicate at that stage what was the course to be fol­
lowe:J and to persuade Governments to take a definite 
pub!tc stand : the effect would be to remove some of 
the difficulti.es. He recal~ed that the representative of 
the I~ter~atwnal FederatiOn of Agricultural Producers, 
speakmg m the .twenty-seco?d session (930th meeting) 
of the Economic and Social Council, had held that 
Gov.ernments we~e responsible for the present state of 
affairs and that It was incumbent upon them to pro­
mo~e appropriate policies. In that respect also the 
Umted States draft seemed to be a first step in the 
right direction: At the present stage, however, the 
French delegatiOn was prepared to leave the matter in 
the ~ands of the Commission on International Com­
moditY: Trade and of F~O, more particularly the FAO 
Con;mittee on Commodity Problems. It was in those 
bodies that progress could be made, and it was im­
porta~t, the.refore, that they should be given every 
matenal assistance and encouragement. 

47. With regard to the United States draft resolution 
and the I?roposed amendment to it, he stressed the need 
to act with speed and to find methods of action which 
would P.rove immediately acceptable to Governments. 
The Umted ~tate~ dr:'lft resolution proposed one such 
course of actiOn : It atmed at promoting the establish­
men~. of nationa~ reserves to meet food shortages and 
stabi!tze local pnces. That was an essential task. Coun­
tries. threatened with famine or in the process of eco­
nom~c developn;ent had to build up national reserves, 
but It was precisely such countries which did not have 
the means to finance such reserves. They therefore had 
to be helped not only to overcome a crisis, if one arose, 
but also to carry out their programmes by an assurance 
of some degree of continuity in the assistance they were 
receiving. In that way, agricultural surpluses would be 
put to rational use. 
48. The French delegation had already paid a tribute 
to the magnanimity which prompted the United States 
prop~sal. The ?raft resoluti?n, by giving FAO a cen­
trahzmg functiOn and so mtroducing a considerable 
measure of multilateralism, constituted a valuable point 
of departure. It was important, however, to ensure 
th.at t~e building up ?f national reserves through con­
tnbutwns made as gifts or on special conditions did 
not have the effect of upsetting the markets: that was 
the purpose of the Danish amendment. It was the task 
of the Consultative Sub-Committee of the F AO Com­
mit.tee on Commodity Problems to ensure the appli­
catiOn of the general principles laid down by FAO for 
the disposal of surpluses; as its debates had shown 
consultation between all the countries concerned wa~ 
an essential element of international co-operation in that 
field. It was important, therefore, to emphasize that 
aspect ?f th~ problem which, incidentally, was implicitly 
recogmzed m the United States draft. 

49. In conclusion, he stated the specific objectives 
upon which the Committee could at present concen­
trate: promoting the building up of food reserves in 
t?e under-~~vel?ped countries, taking decisive steps to 
hnk the utilizatiOn of surpluses with the execution of 
economic programmes and, lastly, furnishing rapid re­
lief to the hungry. 

50. Mr. MINWALA (Pakistan) recalled the four 
objectives set forth in General Assembly resolution 827 
(IX) and observed that the FAO report on the func­
tions of a world food reserve submitted pursuant to 



172 General Assembly-Eleventh session-Second Committee 

that resolution left no doubt as to the difficulties of 
achieving those objectives within the framework of a 
single organization. Each objective would have to .be 
examined singly, as they presented problems which 
must be approached by very different methods: S~nce 
it was now abundantly clear that all four obJectives 
could not be simultaneously achieved through the estab­
lishment of a world reserve, the question arose whether 
attention should be directed towards one or more of 
them. 
51. It was clear that the first objective-to raise the 
levels of food production and consumption and to fight 
chronic malnutrition-could not be realized except by 
promoting the economic development of areas where 
purchasing power was low. 
52. The second objective-to relieve famine and other 
emergency situations-"':as one of imm.edi~te in:p~rt­
ance, particularly to Pakistan and countnes m a similar 
position. Pakistan had in pas~ years suffered several 
times from food shortages which had had an adverse 
effect on its economic development. Perhaps in no re­
gion of the world today were people living so near the 
margin of subsistence as in Asia and the Far East. 
That region, which comprised half the world'~ popu­
lation, was now producing less food per cap~ta than 
before the war. It could be safely affirmed that the 
agricultural potentialities of the region as a whole were 
such that the possibilities of incr~asing agricultural pro­
ductivity per capita were real, giVen adequate measures 
to that end. 
53. The real problem in that connexion was the ~b­
sence of any adequate machinery capable of taki?g 
urgent measures to meet. ~ecurrent food shortages ans­
ing from natural calamities or other causes. The ar­
rangements made by F AO to invoke international 
emergency aid were rather cumb~rsome, <~;nd coul~ ?Ot 
always be brought into play with sufficient rapi.dity. 
The only practicable course for a country faced With. a 
critical food shortage up to now had been to obtam 
food supplies ~y bilateral negotiations with . c.ountries 
able and willing to help. The terms and conditions un­
der which relief supplies had been donated under the 
existing United States surplus disposal legislation had 
been remarkably generous; but bilateral arrangements 
to relieve a situation caused by shortages had not al­
ways been entirely devoid of political or economic reper­
cussions and countries which had in one way or an­
other b~en adversely affected had sometimes, unfor­
tunately, grown to mistrust bilateral arrangements, 

Printed in U.S.A. 

which had played so important a part in providing 
relief. 
54. The bilateral approach therefore could not be re­
garded as entirely satisfa~tory, when c~msider~d in all 
its aspects. Although Pakistan s expenence with such 
arrangements had been a source of great s<~;tisfac~ion, 
it did not consider that they always provided Ideal 
solutions to emergency food problems. Increasing multi­
lateral co-operation should therefore supplement, but 
not supplant, the present bilateral. arral!gements,. unless 
national food stocks were already m existence. Bilateral 
programmes would not necessarily diminish in import­
ance merely because some of the transactions would 
take place on a multi-governmental basis, probably un­
der the auspices of the United Nations. Since the end 
of the war, the gradual evolution of multilateral ~a­
operation and international actio~ had reached t~e pomt 
where it might be possible to envisage the establishment 
of an emergency food reserve or, alternatively, an in­
ternational relief fund, which would probably be more 
flexible in operation and simpler in organization. 

55. The third objective-price stabilization-s~emed 
more difficult to achieve. Buffer-stock techmques, 
though essentially sound in theory, _Presented many 
practical obstacles, not t~~ least of which we~e storage 
and selection of commodities. Perhaps more hght could 
be thrown on the solution of the problem when the sub­
ject was considered in greater detail by other bod~es 
such as the Commission on International Commodity 
Trade. 
56. The rational disposal of agricultural surpluses, 
most of which were of a primarily structural rather 
than seasonal or cyclical character, would seem to be 
the least baffling of all the problems. Among the pos­
sible uses of food surpluses, the F AO report suggested 
a kind of international food reserve which would pro­
mote economic development in under-developed coun­
tries by making surpluses available on special terms out 
of the reserve. A world food capital fund, whether 
linked with or forming a part of SUNFED, would be 
of inestimable help in financing projects, P<:rticularly 
those requiring extensive manpower. The pllot study 
carried out by F AO in India on the possible use of 
agricultural surpluses in financing economic develop­
ment had shown that it was possible to use such sur­
pluses to the mutual advantage of producing and re­
cipient countries. 

The meeting rose at 12.35 p.m. 

S-77201-February 1957-2,100 




